STARSS DRAFT NNL06134382R 

Questions and Answers 

April 14, 2006 


Q1.  L.8 Pre-Solicitation Conference—(Page 4 of 18): We request that four representatives from each company be allowed to attend the Pre-Solicitation Conference.


A1.  This has already been addressed in DRFP NNL06134382R Amendment #1.

Q2.  Please provide the list of companies that responded to the RFI.


A2.  The Government does not intend to provide the list of companies that 
responded to the RFI.  See FAR 15.207(b).
Q3. H.3 (d) (5)—Page 21: Does the “maximum dollar amount” for an approved Task Order represent a “not to exceed” number or a ceiling? If so, how is the maximum related to the contractor’s “best estimate” or “target”?


A3. The “maximum dollar amount” used in the Task Ordering Procedure represents the 
cost and fee estimate for the task.  This cost and fee estimate results from the 
Contractor’s task proposal and the Government’s review and represents a task ceiling that 
should not be exceeded.
Q4. H.4 (b)—Page 22: Are any export licenses currently in place? Are there currently any foreign nationals on the contract? If so, are any export licenses currently in place for

them?

A4.  Export licenses are currently in place for the current contractor and task orders.  
The new contractor is responsible for obtaining any new export licenses required under 
the contract.  Foreign Nationals are currently on contract NAS1-02058.  


Q5. I.6—Page 34: Since the STARSS procurement is 100% small-business set-aside, is this clause required?


A5.  FAR Clause 52.219-8 is a required clause and the percentages provided are shown 
for historical information only and do not represent goals.
Q6. L.12.3(b)—(Page 6 of 18): We request allowing graphics (tables and figures) to be

presented in an 8-point font size. This practice is consistent with typical technical

publications and makes graphics more balanced and readable. With this allowance, we

feel that the 75-page limitation is adequate to address the Mission Suitability

requirements of the proposal. We also request that the font requirements be limited to the

write-up (text) portions of the cost proposal volume.

A6.  The final RFP will be revised to reflect that graphics (tables and figures) and cost 
proposal spreadsheets are allowed to be presented in an 8-point font.
Q7. L.12.A.5—(Page 6 of 18): We respectfully request that offerors be allowed to submit

electronic versions of the proposal in a searchable PDF format. Specifying Word

compatibility presents a difficulty in duplicating the exact image of the hard copy

version, as proposals are often developed using publications software packages, such as

Microsoft Publisher. These packages do not have the functionality to produce an identical

Microsoft Word file.


A7.    MS Word is compatible software with that used by the evaluation team.  
Documents should be submitted using Microsoft Office 2003 formats, as specified in 
the RFP.
Q8. L.12.A.5—(Page 6 of 18): Do you require two (2) separate compact discs or USB Flash drives for each volume or can we combine all volumes into one disc/drive?


A8.  We require separate compact discs or USB Flash drives for each volume.

Q9. L.12.A.5 (a)—(Page 6-18): The instructions require the offerors to submit two (2)

original signed copies of the model contract along with all exhibits. Are we required to

supply two (2) copies of the Safety and Health Plan in this portion, as well as the original

and 12 copies required under the Technical Proposal Volume?


A9.   The offeror shall submit (1) original signed copy of the model contract along 
with all the Exhibits.   L.12.A.5(a) will be revised in the final RFP.  No, you do not 
need to supply (2) copies of the Safety and Health Plan.  

Q10. L.12.B Subfactor 2, Task Management (2) Quality Systems—(page 9 of 18): The

requirement that all offerors shall submit a Quality Plan, as stated, would seem to indicate

that it is to be included with the proposal submission.  However, Exhibit D (N.) (page 4 of 8) and Exhibit J indicate it is due 30 days after contract award. Please clarify.


A10.   L.12.B Subfactor 2, Task Management (2) Quality Systems will be revised in the 
final RFP. The Quality Plan referenced in Exhibit D (N.) (page 4 of 8) and Exhibit J is 
to be submitted for Government review/approval 30 days after the contract effective date. 
Q11. L.12.B Subfactor 2, Personnel Management—(page 10 of 18): Significant subcontracts are defined here as over $500,000, but as over $550,000 in other sections (i.e., L.12.C (3) and (5)); please clarify.


A11.  Pursuant to NFS 1852.231-71, Determination of Compensation 
Reasonableness, paragraph (d) The offeror shall require all service subcontractors 
(1) 
with proposed cost reimbursement or non-competitive fixed-price type subcontracts 
having a total potential value in excess of $500,000 and (2) the cumulative value of 
all their service subcontracts under the proposed prime contract in excess of 10 percent of 
the prime contract's total potential value, provide as part of their proposals the 


information identified in (a) through (c) of this provision. Therefore, the offeror shall 
submit the subcontractor compensation plans for subcontracts over $500,000.  
L.12.C.(3) and (5) refer to the threshold for obtaining Cost and Pricing information 
in accordance with FAR 15.403-4.  

Q12. Attachment 1, Safety and Health Plan Instructions—(pages 2 and 3 of 3): Are crane

certification, scaffolding, and excavation and trenching plans required as part of the

contracted activities and therefore required to be addressed in the Safety and Health Plan?


A12. The Safety and Health Plan Instructions will be revised to indicate that these items 
are not applicable to the contract.  
Q13. L.12.C.6(c)–(Pages 13 through 15 of 18): We note that several categories have gaps in the grade definitions (i.e., junior experience is fewer than 5 years, and senior is 10 years or more). We also note that there are no categories appropriate for students. Are offerors limited to proposing only the two junior/senior grades within classifications, or allowed to develop gradations within these guidelines?
We also note that no supervisory experience requirement is listed for supervisors; please

clarify.

A13.  L.12C.6.(c) “Direct Labor Classifications Descriptions” will be revised to eliminate education, experience, and grade descriptions in the final RFP.  In accordance with L.12.C.6.(c)1 your proposal must explain any composite hourly rate proposed.
Q14. L.12.C.6.(g)—(Page 16 of 18): The 107/107 on-site/off-site split for personnel is

inconsistent with the 219 WYEs indicated in Attachment 4; please clarify.

A14.  
Section L.12.C.6(g) (page 16 of 18) will be altered in the final RFP to reflect 107 personnel onsite and all other personnel offsite.
Q15. L.12.C.6 (c) 1—(Page 15 of 18): Are there any current incumbent employees subject to the Service Contract Act? If so, do you anticipate this requirement to continue in the STARSS Contract?

A15.  Yes, there are current incumbent employees subject to the Service Contract 
Act. 
And yes, we anticipate this requirement to continue in the STARSS Contract.

Q16. L.12.C.6 (i)—(Page 17 of 18): We request that NASA provide the escalation rates that the Government intends to use as guidelines in assessing the reasonableness of proposed compensation increases.


A16.  For cost realism, the actual labor escalation Contractors anticipate paying 
employees is the amount that should be proposed.  Therefore, offerors should use the 


escalation rates which are consistent with their company compensation and 
accounting policies.
Q17. Attachment 2, Past Performance Evaluation—(page 5 of 7): The Past Performance

evaluation form (VI.B) asks for respondents to provide the contractor’s overhead and

G&A rates. Should this question distinguish between on-site, off-site, or any other

overhead rates that are applicable?


A17.  Budgeted and Actual Indirect Rate information is also being 
requested on 
Attachment 5 Cost Form C.  The indirect rate information will be deleted from the 
Attachment 2, Past Performance Evaluation.
Q18. M.4.A (1.)—(page 6 of 6): Please provide a breakdown for point values of subfactors in Understanding the Requirement so that offerors can make appropriate allocations for the proportion of pages to devote to each subfactor.


A18.  There are no subfactor point values assigned.
Q19. M.4.C—(page 6 of 6): Point adjustments are shown in 5% increments, e.g., for

differences between 0 and 5%, and between 6% and 10%. What is the adjustment for

differences falling between 5–6%? Are such differences rounded up or down to the

nearest percentage?

A19.  In accordance with NFS 1815.305(a)(3)(B)(d), the adjustment up to 5.999% would be the same as 0-5%. 
Q20.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 2.0 General Scope - The Bidder’s Library at http://deneb.nasa.gov does not appear to be active yet. When will it be online?

A20.  The website is active and the web address in C.1, 2.0 was incorrect.  The correct 
website is http://deneb.larc.nasa.gov/ and will be revised in the final RFP.
Q21.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - What hours of operation are required for the Service/Help Desk?

A21.  Operation hours for the Help Desk for ASDC are from 8:00AM to 4:30PM 
Monday through Friday.
Q22.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - Are the results of past customer satisfaction assessments available to STARRS bidders?


A22.  NASA Earth Observing System Data and Information Systems (EOSDIS) scores 
for 2004 and 2005 are available at the American Customer Satisfaction Index (ACSI) site 
at URL http://www.theacsi.org/government/govt-all-05.html
Also, a presentation of the EOSDIS 2005 Customer Satisfaction Study with LaRC (Distributed Active Archive Center) DAAC score is provided in the Bidder’s Library at http://deneb.larc.nasa.gov.

Q23.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - Are logs of data processing requests (to include both standard products and special processing requests) available?

A23.   Records of Clouds and the Earth's Radiant Energy System (CERES) production requests are available whereas those for EOS Core System (ECS) are not. A copy of the CERES production requests for 2005 is provided in the Bidder’s Library at http://deneb.larc.nasa.gov.  Also several slides in the Atmospheric Science Data Center (ASDC) Overview presentation for the Pre-solicitation Conference contain metrics on data processing for both ECS and LaTIS for your reference.  This presentation is also available in the Bidder’s Library at http://deneb.larc.nasa.gov.

Q24.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - What kind of outreach activities have been conducted in the past?

A24.  Some examples of outreach activities include the Multi-angle Imaging 
SpectroRadiometer (MISR) and CERES workshops, poster sessions at American 
Geophysical Union (AGU) and American Meteorological Society (AMS) meetings, 
teachers’ workshop, the My NASA Data project and the CERES S’COOL project.
Q25.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - Is the current ASDC information architecture documented?  If it is, can this information be provided to bidders?

A25.  No, there is no formal ASDC information architecture document.  Bidders can examine the ASDC information organization and functionality of the web access by navigating the ASDC public website at http://eosweb.larc.nasa.gov

Q26.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - How many civil servants are involved in the day-to-day operations and support of the ASDC?

A26.  There are six civil servants involved in the day-to-day operations and support 
of the ASDC.
Q27.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.1 Customer and Data Services, 4.1.1 Requirements - What tool is currently being used to support the On-Call Service/Help Desk? Is this a Government or contractor provided tool?  
A27.  The Remedy’s Action Request System (ARS) is currently being used for this, it 
is a Government Provided tool, and referenced in Exhibit A, Installation-Accountable 
Government Property.

Q28.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.2 Operations, 4.2.2 Requirements - What functionality is required in the online document management system? Is it strictly a repository where users search for and retrieve information or is it a collaboration tool used for the development, review, routing, and approval of technical papers and other products? 

A28.  It is functionally a web accessible document management system for storage 
and retrieval of information.  A collaboration tool for document development is not 
required to perform this function.
Q29.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.2 Operations, 4.2.2 Requirements - What is the sensitivity of documents stored in the document management system? Is encrypted storage and/or transmittal required?

A29.  This system is for the operation of ASDC.  It is not a public site.  Encryptions in 
storage and transmission are not required.

Q30.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.2 Operations, 4.2.2 Requirements - What are the primary and supporting operating system platforms in use that support this requirement?  
A30.  The operating system platforms in use that support this requirement are the
IRIX, Solaris, Linux and Macintosh OS X.

Q31.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.2 Operations, 4.2.2 Requirements - What databases are currently being used to support this requirement? 

A31.  The databases currently used to support this requirement are Informix, 
Sybase, PostgreSQL and MySQL.
Q32.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.2 Operations, 4.2.2 Requirements - What inventory control tool is currently being used to support this requirement? 

Q32.  Aperture is used for inventory control to support this requirement.

Q33.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.2 Operations, 4.2.2 Requirements - What configuration management tool is currently being used to support this requirement? 


A33.  The configuration management utilizes the Aperture and Subversion 
software.

Q34.  C.1 STATEMENT OF WORK, 4.3 Systems Engineering, 4.3.1 Requirements - 
What two EOSDIS digital libraries are being integrated into a new system?

A34.  One is an EOS Core System (ECS) information system supporting mostly 
MISR (Multi-angle Imaging SpectroRadiometer) data.  The other is the LaRC TRMM (Tropical Rainfall Measuring Mission) Information System, called LaTIS.  LaTIS supports mostly the CERES (Clouds and Earth Radiant Energy System Project) data.  More than 40 projects are supported by these two digital libraries.

Q35.  [LCDE]L.12  PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION – SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 3. Proposal Page Limitations: (b) - May header and footer information be included in the one-inch margins (i.e. company name, date, solicitation number, etc.)?  Are graphics, charts, and tables excluded from the 12-point type restriction? 
A35.  Headers and footers may be in the one-inch margins, the final RFP will reflect the change.   See A6.
Q36.  L.12  PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION  – SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 4.  Proposal Submission Information and 5. Submission of Proposal/Proposed Contract in Hard Copy and Electronic Media Format - The draft solicitation requires submission of 12 hard copies and two electronic copies of the Past Performance volume. We do not see a reference to numbers of copies (hard and electronic) for the Technical Proposal (Volume I) and the Cost/Price Proposal (Volume II).  How many hard copies and how many electronic copies of Volumes I and II are required?

A36.  L.12.4 will be revised to add, “The Offeror shall submit the original and 12 
hard 
copies and two (2) electronic copies of the remaining volumes (Volumes I 
and II) of the 
proposal on or before the date and hour shown in Block 9 of the SF 33.”  
Q37.
In Exhibit J, the Quality Plan appears to be due 30 days after contract award.  In Section L on page 9 of 18, under (2) Quality Systems, there appears to be a Quality Plan required with the submission of the proposal.   Could you verify that these are different Quality Plans, and if so please clarify the differences between the two plans?

A37.  See A10.
Q38.
Can we use an 8 point font size for graphics?

A38.  See A6.
Q39.
Is the Total Compensation Plan included in the 75-page limit for the Mission Suitability Proposal, Volume 1?

A39.  The Total Compensation Plan for prime and subcontractors will be excluded from 
the total page count in the final RFP.
Q40. 
 It appears that Subcontractor Total Compensation Plans are to be included in the Prime proposal.  Is this the case?

A40.  Yes, see A39.
Q41. Section J, Exhibit B, Page: 1-12 - Is Exhibit B, List of Government Furnished Property a complete listing of all GFE on the contract or is it intended as a representative list?

A41.  Exhibit B, List of Government Furnished Property, is a complete listing of all 
equipment available to be provided as GFE.

Q42.  Section L.9 (d), Determination of Compensation Reasonableness, Page 5 of 18

and Section: L.12.B.Subfactor 2, Personnel Management, Page 10 of 18 - Section L.9 (d) states that a Total Compensation Plan must be submitted for “all service

subcontractors (1) with proposed cost reimbursement or non-competitive fixed-price type subcontracts having a total value potential value in excess of $500,000 and (2) the cumulative value of all their service subcontracts under the proposed prime contract in excess of 10% of the prime contract’s total potential value”. 
Section L.12.B.Subfactor 2, Personnel Management states that “Pursuant to L.9, the offeror shall submit subcontractor compensation plans for subcontracts over $500,000. 

Is the statement is Section L.9 correct and only those subcontracts that meet both conditions require Total Compensation Plans?


A42.  The following sentences, “Pursuant to L.9, the offeror shall submit subcontractor 
compensation plans for subcontracts over $500,000.,” will be removed from 
L.12.B.Subfactor 2, Personnel Management and “The Government will evaluate the 
proposed individual compensation plans of potential subcontractors over $500,000.,” will 
be removed from M.3.A.Subfactor 2, Personnel Management..  The offeror shall comply 
in accordance 
with L.5, FAR 52.222-46 Evaluation of Compensation for Professional 
Employees and L.9, NFS 1852.231-71 Determination of Compensation Reasonableness.
Q43.  Section L.12.A.3, Proposal Page Limitations, Page: 5 of 18 - The RFP limits Volume I to 75 pages, including the technical approach, management plan, and sample problem response. Given the volume of information requested and our desire to provide a complete response to all of the technical requirements, etc., we request that you increase the page count to 100 pages total for Volume I.

A43.  The total page count remains unchanged.  See A39.
Q44.  Section L.12.A.3, Paragraph (b), Page: 6 of 18 - The font size specified for the proposal is 12 point. To make graphics and tables more visually appealing, we recommend the addition of the following caveat to the RFP: 
Tables, charts, graphs, figures, diagrams and schematics will contain font sizes no smaller than 8 point, be uncomplicated, legible, and appropriate for the subject matter.  Foldout pages may 
only be used for large tables, charts, graphs, plans, figures, diagrams and schematics, not for pages of text.


A44.  See A6.

Q45.  Section L.12.B.Subfactor 2, Paragraph Personnel Management, Page: 10 of 18 - The RFP specifies that separate Total Compensation Plans must be submitted for each subcontractor with subcontracts exceeding $500,000.  These plans could end up requiring significant page count for teams with multiple major subcontractors.  
We request that the Total Compensation Plans be removed the from the page count and made an appendix to Volume I.


A45.  See A39 and A42. 
Q46.  L.12.C.3 It states that “each subcontract expected to exceed a total of $550,000 and to provide services for any of the effort shall also be supported in a similar manner consistent as the Prime contractor and in accordance with FAR 15.408, Table 15-2, General Instructions A, E, G and II (Cost Elements).”   This is a heavy requirement for the subcontract amount of $550,000, could this be changed to 5% of the proposed contract value.

A46.  FAR 15.403-3 allows for the request of other than cost and pricing information for the purposes of determining cost reasonableness. The $550,000 dollar threshold is consistent with past Pricing policy at NASA LaRC and has consistently shown to be a valid dollar threshold.
Q47.  L.12.D.1 The significant subcontractor or team member is defined at or above $550,000.   This amount is hardly a significant amount when the total contract value is considered.   It should be changed to 5% of the proposed contract value.


A47.    See A46.
Q48.  I.6. Page 34 – Since this procurement is small business set-aside, will this clause be removed or will subcontracting goals be established for Small Disadvantaged Businesses, Woman Owned Businesses, HUBZone businesses, and Veteran / Service Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses?


A48.  See A5.

Q49.  I.7 Page 35 & 35 – The Monetary Wages listed in the clause seems to be place holders and the clause does not include Government pay grade information. The Department of Labor guide for preparing conformances instructs Contractors to use the Government pay grade 
information to prepare conformances and the RFP indicates that conformances may be required. Will pay grade data (i.e. GS levels) be provided? Are the Monetary Wages listed correct?


A49.  This is the hourly rate for a GS-11, Step 1.  These monetary wages are 
correct.

Q50.  Exhibit D – Many of the plans listed are required 30 days after award and some are due 30 days after the contract effective date. For clarity, please identify the anticipated time between award and phase-in and whether the phase-in start date is considered the contract effective date for purposes of calculating due dates. Is it possible that plans due 30 days after award would be due prior to the start of phase-in?

A50.  The anticipated award date is October 6, 2006 and the planned phase-in begins 
November 1, 2006.  The phase-in start date is the effective date of the contract.  No, we 
do not anticipate the plans would be due prior to the start of Phase-In.  
Q51.  Exhibit D, Item V – The Draft RFP requires an Organizational Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan yet the Draft RFP does not include a relevant clause or any information regarding potential OCI’s.


A51.  Please see H.6 ACCESS TO SENSITIVE INFORMATION (NFS 1852.237-72) 
(JUN 2005) and H.7 RELEASE OF SENSITIVE INFORMATION (NFS 1852.237-73) 
(JUN 2005).  These clauses are included in the RFP because the contractor may have 
access to proprietary data and/or sensitive information, as a result of support of contract 
requirements for the Science Directorate.
Q52.  Section L.12.C.6.(c) page 12 of 18 and page 13 of 18 – The first paragraph directs the Offeror to use 405,150 direct labor hours and an 1,850 hour productive man-year for estimating purposes. The second paragraph directs the offeror to show the derivation of it’s productive man-year and show the hours and costs by labor classification/category. It is unclear which productive man-year hours should be used in the cost forms. Please clarify.

A52.  If your individual company productive man year estimate is other than 1,850 you should use your productive man year however, you are to propose to the total hour estimate of 405,150.  L.12.C.6(c). will be revised to add, “Any variance from the estimated labor categories and skill mix shown below shall be fully supported in the technical proposal.,” in the final RFP.
 
Q53.  Section L.12.C.6.(c) page 13 of 18 – The “Direct Labor Classifications Descriptions” table includes Senior and Junior Grades for all positions except Senior Scientist yet the “Labor Matrix” and the cost forms do not include the grade levels. Is it the intent that Offerors estimate the portion of each grade in deriving a category labor rate or will the “Proposal Hours” and costs forms be changed to reflect Grade level estimates?

A53.  L.12C.6.(c) “Direct Labor Classifications Descriptions” will be revised to eliminate the Junior and Senior Grade descriptions in the final RFP.   Cost forms will remain unchanged.  See A13.
Q54.  Section L.12.C.6.(g) page 16 of 18 – The “Contractor’s Off-Site Facility” indicates the offeror must provide space for approximately 107 personnel and the Government will provide space for up to 107 contractor personnel. The estimated direct labor hours from Section 
L.12.C.6.(c) equate to 219 direct labor staff , matching the total in Attachment 4, Workload Indicators. Attachment 4 indicates 104 personnel in Government Facilities and 115 in contractor facilities. These numbers do not include indirect management and administrative personnel. We assume that the 104 personnel indicated in Exhibit 4 will be in Government facilities and the Offeror is responsible for providing space for all other personnel. Is this correct? Please clarify.


A54.  See A14.
Q55.  Section L.B sub factor 2, page 10 - Personnel Management Total Compensation Plan (TCP). Pursuant to L.9, the offeror shall submit the subcontractor compensation plans for subcontracts over $500,000, does this threshold apply to year one of the award or the entire 60 month contract period?  Can the prime provide a TCP and include a comparison graphic/chart detailing the prime’s and each subcontractor’s benefits? Can the government exclude the TCP’s from the 75 page limit for the technical proposal?

A55.  The offeror shall submit the subcontractor compensation plans for subcontracts 
over $500,000, based on the entire 60 month contract period.  Yes, 
the prime may 
provide a TCP and include a comparison graphic/chart detailing the prime’s and each 
subcontractor’s benefits.  See A39.
Q56.  Section L.B sub factor 2, page 11 – Normally transition and phase-in plans are excluded from the page count in order to allow offerers to provide complete plans.


A56.  This requirement will remain unchanged.

Q57.  Section L.D.1 – For subcontracting, in the evaluation of past performance the size, scope, and complexity places an undue burden on small business partners, we recommend removing the size requirement and to change the “and” to “or” such that it is evaluated as “scope or complexity”?


A57.  This requirement will remain unchanged, however, the following sentence will be 
revised in Section L.D.1, “Therefore, this factor will assess each offeror's record 
(including the record of any significant subcontractors (over $550,000) and/or teaming 
partners) of performing services or delivering products that are similar in size, scope, and 
complexity to the requirements of this solicitation (or to the portion of work to be 
performed by the significant 
subcontractor or teaming partner.).”         
Q58.  Other 1 - Is the “Equipment Cost” listed on Cost Form D the same as the cost listed in Cost Form A item 6a and RFP L.12.C.6.b?

A58.  Yes. 
Q59.  Other 2 - Cost Form E requests information regarding Cost Accounting Standards yet the RFP does not include the CAS clauses (since this is a small business set-aside procurement) and small businesses are exempt from CAS coverage. Other items on the Cost Form E also seem to be not applicable to small business set-aside procurements. Please clarify.
A59.  Small businesses may partner with large businesses for this procurement.  The final RFP will be revised to require offerors to provide separate Cost Form E’s for the Prime and each Subcontractor over the $550,000 threshold.  Cost Form E items may vary in applicability depending on the offeror.  Small business and large are required to have an adequate accounting system for award of a cost contract.  Also, other system reviews may be performed at small and large businesses. 
 Q60.  Section H.4, Page 22 Export Licenses - Please identify any existing or planned task orders with existing export license requirements.

A60. The Contractor is responsible for adhering to all Export Regulations.  The use of foreign nationals in performance of a task order containing sensitive data is strictly up to the contractor.  The planned task orders on the Bidder’s Library have been revised to reflect the task orders requiring the handling of any sensitive data.  See A4.
Q61.  Section H.14, Page 27 ISO 9001 - Is the current ASRATSS contract ISO 9001 certified or compliant?  If yes, we request that the Government include these processes in the online bidders library.

A61.   The current ASRATSS contract is ISO 9001 compliant and the current processes 
are proprietary to the incumbent contractor.
Q62.  Section I.6, Page 34, Small Business participation - Since this is a Small Business set-aside, is this clause applicable?


A62.  See A5.


Q63.   Section I.7, Page 35, Equivalent Rates - Please validate that the wages listed are correct since the wage for each category is the same - $24.90.

A63.  See A49.
Q64.  L.12, paragraph A.3(b), Page 6, Font Size - Please specify the font size requirement for text in graphics, charts, tables, and diagrams (we recommend no smaller than 8 point).

A64.  See A6.


Q65.  L.12, paragraph A.3(c), Page 6, Page Limitations - We recommend that the Total 
Compensation Plans for prime and subcontractors be excluded from the 75 page limitation for 
Mission Suitability Proposal, Volume I.  If a page limit is desired for the Total Compensation 
Plan(s), we recommend that each plan (prime and subs) have a separate page limitation.


A65.  See A39.
Q66.  L.12, paragraph A.5, Page 6, Electronic Submission - MS Excel 2003 should be added to this section since it is a requirement identified in the Cost Proposal instructions in Section L.12, C.5(a).
A66.  The final RFP will be revised to specifically state, “The Technical Volume shall be submitted in software compatible with Microsoft Word 2003.  The Cost/Price Volume shall be submitted in software compatible with Microsoft Office 2003.  Note:  Cost Forms A-E shall be submitted in Microsoft Excel 2003 (see paragraph L.12.C.5(a) below).”
Q67.  L.12, paragraph A.5, Page 6, Electronic Submission - For documents other than MS Excel, we request that the Government consider allowing electronic submission using Portable Document Format (PDF) in addition to MS Word 2003.



A67.  See A7.
Q68. L.12 B, Page 9, CMMI - RFP SOW 2.0 and E.2 identifies a CMMI Level 2 requirement.  Is this a requirement for the Prime or can the subcontractor hold this rating?   Are offerors required to have CMMI Level 2 at time of award or, like the ISO 9001 requirement, allowed a pre-determined time frame to obtain CMMI Level 2 rating?  For offerors without an existing CMMI Level 2 rating, is a Compliance Plan also required?  If a CMMI Compliance Plan is required, recommend that this also be excluded from the page count. 


A68.  The CMMI Level 2 capability requirement pertains to the software development performed under the contract as prescribed by NPR 7150.2.  If a subcontractor is responsible for software development, then that subcontractor will be required to be in compliance with any CMMI requirements.  It is anticipated that most software developed 

under the contract will be Class D and Class E as defined in Appendix D of NPR 7150.2.  Some Class C software will be developed under the contract but local policies and 

implementation strategies have not yet been formulated relating to NPR 7150.2.  Since Class D and Class E software do not require the developers to have a CMMI rating and 

implementation of Class C is yet to be defined, offerors are not required to have a CMMI rating at the time of contract award though plans and progress toward a CMMI level rating will be considered in the evaluation.  Since it is expected that the contractor may be required to have a CMMI level rating during the period of performance of the contract, the offeror is expected to address their plans for that area.  A CMMI compliance plan is not required.  The final RFP evaluation criteria will be revised accordingly.
Q69.  L.12, paragraph B, Page 9, Task Management
- What tool is currently being used by the incumbent to support the task management functions?  Where can we find documentation on the existing tool that is used by the Government and incumbent for task order management? Will this tool be provided as part of GFE?

A69.  Systems in use by the incumbent to support task management are


proprietary.  A Task Management tool is not being supplied as GFE under either 
ASRATSS or STARSS.
Q70. L.12, paragraph B, Page 10, Compensation Plan - The subcontract threshold for submittal of a Compensation Plan is $500K whereas the subcontract threshold for submitting Past Performance and Cost information is $550K.  Should the subcontract threshold for the Compensation Plan also be $550K instead of $500K? 



A70.  No, the Total Compensation Plan threshold should be $500,000.  See A11.
Q71.  L.12, paragraph C.5(a), Page 11, Electronic Submission - Is it permissible for offerors to use MS Word 2003 and/or PDF for the narrative portion of the Cost Proposal?



A71.  See A7.
Q72.  Attachment 6, All - Sample Problem - Will the sample problem described in Attachment 6 to the RFP become a real task on the program after contract award? 

A72.   The sample problem was created for RFP purposes however some or all aspects of the sample problem could be included in future Task Orders. 
Q73.  Recommend the Government consider offering a one-on-one conference with interested Prime teams.  If practical, this could coincide with the upcoming pre-solicitation conference.



A73.  The Government is open to meeting with interested parties up until the 



release of the final RFP.  POC’s are Richard Siebels (C.O.) (757) 864-2418 and 


Dee Poupard (COTR) (757) 864-6098.

Q74. L.12, paragraph C.6(a), Page 12, Period of Performance - Typo - The contract end date should be 2011 instead of 2111.



A74.  Yes, L.12.C.6(e) will be corrected in the final RFP.
Q75.  Exhibit D, paragraph N, Page 4, Quality Plan - The Contract Documentation Requirement states that the Quality Plan is due 30 calendar days after the effective date of the contract, whereas Exhibit J states 30 days after award.  Please clarify.


A75.  See A50.
Q76.  Exhibit D, paragraph X, Page 6 - Self-Assessment Report - This section references an “Award Fee Evaluation Plan” in Exhibit K.  We believe the reference should be Attachment 3. 



A76.  The Award Fee Evaluation Plan will be attached to the signed contract as Exhibit 


K.  The draft Award Fee Evaluation Plan in the RFP is Attachment 3.

Q77.   Section H.12 states that normal work activities are suspended for a day each year to review safety practices and procedures. Does LaRC intend for the contractors employees to charge this time to their normal Task Order, a separate Task Order established for this activity, or overhead?

A77.  NASA will not issue a separate task order for this activity.  Contractors shall 
account for costs associated with this activity in accordance with their approved 
accounting system.
 
Q78.   Exhibit D, Section W, Source code. Contractor shall provide source code and documentation for all TOs to the COTR. Does LaRC intend to perform review and acceptance testing of delivered code prior to delivery approval?

A78.  Different software engineering models are in use in different projects.  Delivery 
processes for codes developed in each project are dependent upon the software 
engineering model applied, the type of development performed (bug fixes, algorithm 
changes, new algorithm implementation), the state of the codes, etc. The specifics of 


delivery will be identified in each Task Order as part of the 
plan for accomplishing the 
work.  All code deliveries will be subjected to some type of acceptance process, but the 
process may be other than review and acceptance testing.
 
Q79.   L.12.C.6(g) Contractors Off-Site Facility. This paragraph states that the off-site facility must accommodate 107 people and that LaRC will provide on-site space to accommodate 107 people. Is this correct?

A79.  See A14.
 
Q80.   CMMI Level 2 capability rating - Does LaRC intend for all software development to occur in a Level 2 environment? If not, can you provide some example TOs where Level 2 would be required and TOs where it would not be required? 

A80.  The CMMI Level 2 capability requirement pertains to the software development performed under the contract as prescribed by NPR 7150.2.  It is anticipated that most software developed under the contract will be Class D and Class E as defined in Appendix D of NPR 7150.2.  At this time, a CMMI level rating is not required for development of Class D and Class E software.  It is 
anticipated that some Class C software may be developed under the contract but local policies and implementation strategies have not yet been formulated relating to NPR 7150.2.  Some examples of planned tasks that included software that may be classified as Class C are Task Order (TO) 1.03, TO 1.05, TO 1.22, and TO 1.23.  Other software development performed under the contract would primarily be classified as Class D and Class E.

Q81.  The draft RFP allows a period of nine months for the contractor to obtain ISO 9001 
certification. The draft RFP does not mention a similar period for the contractor to acquire a Level 2 CMMI rating. What is the government time requirement for this?

A81.  The Government is not specifying a time period for a contractor to receive a 
CMMI Level 2 capability rating.  It is anticipated that the contractor may be 
required to have a CMMI Level 2 capability rating during the period of performance 
of the contract, but the specific date of the requirement is not known at this time.  The 
offeror’s status or progress toward receiving a CMMI rating of level 2 or higher will be 
considered in the evaluation. 
 
Q82.   L.12.A.3(c) Page count exclusions. Suggest adding list of tables and list of acronyms to page count excluded content.
A82.  The lists of tables and acronyms will be excluded from the page count in the final RFP.  
 
Q83.   L.12.A.3(b) Does the 12pt type size requirement apply to table content or text in 
graphics? We suggest a 10pt minimum for tables and an 8pt minimum for descriptive text in graphics.

A83.  See A6.
Q84.  Section L – Labor Matrix (pg 12 & 13) - Can offerors adjust their proposed labor hours (as indicated in Exhibit 4) based on their solution or must they use the hours specified in Section L Labor Matrix?


A84.  The following sentence will be added to L.C.6.(c), “Any variance from the 
estimated labor categories and skill mix shown below shall be fully supported in the 


technical proposal.”  However, offerors shall bid the total number of hours listed in the 
Labor Matrix in L.C.6.(c)1.  See A52.

Q85.  Section L – Labor Matrix (pg 12 & 13) - Should offerors price the same labor hours provided in the Section L Labor Matrix table for each Contract year?


A85.  Yes, as stated in Section L, para C.6(c), "assume 405,150 direct labor hours 
will be 
required annually apportioned by labor skill categories as set forth in the Table below..."

Q86.  Attachment 4 – Workload Indicators - The "Attach 4" tab provides staffing for onsite, offsite, and WYEs per SOW elements.  The narrative states "Offerors may propose differing staff levels ."  This differs from our interpretation of the instructions in Section L Labor Matrix.  Please clarify if offerors are allowed to change staffing levels as indicated in Attachment 4 or if they must use the labor hours provided in Section L Labor Matrix and directed in the Section L instructions for completion of Cost Form B, Direct Labor Hours, Labor Rates and Cost.

A86.  The following sentence, “Offerors may propose differing staff levels than those 
indicated herein, with appropriate substantiation for the difference,” will be 
removed from Attachment 4 of the final RFP.  Cost proposals should be based on the 
total labor hours in the Labor Matrix Table in Section L, para C.6(c).  See A52.

Q87.  Attachment 4 – Workload Indicators - This spreadsheet contains a tab titled "Attach 5" which is a Workload Parameter Worksheet.  Is this sheet intended for offeror's internal use or is the offeror supposed to include a completed Worksheet in our proposal?  If we are to include in our proposal, please advise which volume and if we are to provide a separate worksheet for each contract year and transition.


A87.  The tab entitled, “Attach 5,” will be deleted for the final RFP.  It is not 
intended for offeror’s use or submittal with the offeror’s proposal.
Q88.  Within the CERES Algorithm hyperlink in the STARSS Bidders Library (http://asd-www.larc.nasa.gov/ATBD/ ), the subsystem hyperlinks (e.g. 0.0 CERES Algorithm Overview, Release 2.2, June 2, 1997) are not working.

A88.  These links were fixed prior to the pre-solicitation conference.
 
Q89.  The Personal Identity Verification (PIV) hyperlink to PIC 06-03- does not work.

A89.  This link has been fixed.
 
Q90.  I would also like to recommend that you consider posting the Pre-solicitation presentation in the bidders library a day or two prior to the actual conference (if possible).  This would allow industry to review prior to the meeting to digest content and prepare questions, as appropriate.  
We would also be able to bring our own hardcopy of the presentation and make notes directly on the pitch itself.


A90.  The Pre-Solicitation Charts are now posted to the web.

 

Q91.
In additional to the ASDC Facility Tour, please consider including a tour of the building 1250 
labs that are affiliated with the STARSS contract.

A91.  The labs in Building 1250 are primarily Government operated facilities.  Any 
requirements for contractor support for these facilities will be defined through Task 
Orders.  In an effort to minimize disruption to the research programs, no other facilities 
are available for general viewing other than the ASDC.
Q92.
Can you share with me any history of how the SB size of 1000 (NAICS 54170) was assigned to the STARRS II solicitation?  The scope of work (atmospheric physics research or environmental research) doesn't seem to extend into either of the size standard exceptions (aircraft of spacecraft research) that would push the size to 1000.  Perhaps this was the result of the earlier market research?   Anyway, it seems to me at the 1000 size, several relatively large and experienced businesses would still be considered small and perhaps that's NASA's intent.

A92.   The size standard was determined after significant market research and discussion regarding the work requirements for the STARSS procurement.  The work requirements for the STARSS procurement support laboratory measurement and related modeling as applied to the research in to the physical phenomena associated with the atmosphere using instruments located on spacecraft and aircraft.  The most critical work on the existing contract is the conceptual design, testing, evaluation, and calibration of such instruments, including software either flying on the spacecraft, monitoring instrument health, or used in the instrument data reduction.   The recent size standards for similar competitive procurements within NASA were also factored into the determination of the size standard for this procurement. 
Q93.  Will CloudSat data be collected and archived at the LaRC Data Center or elsewhere?

A93.  CloudSat data, in general, will be archived and published at the CloudSat Data Processing Center at Colorado State University.  CloudSat data for the sample problem will be ingested at the CERES Science Computing Facility in Building 1250.

Q94.  Since the pre-solicitation was taped, will the video be available on the Bidder's Library?

A94.  The pre-solicitation conference was videotaped for NASA internal training purposes only.  All charts presented at the conference will be posted to the web.  All questions were submitted and responded to, in writing.

Q95.  For identifying respondees (COTR) for Past Performance Questionnaires, will the Government accept/allow recently retired civil servants (former COTRs who are most knowledgeable of past performance) to complete and submit the Questionnaires?

A95.  No.  Past Performance questionnaires must be submitted by the government or commercial business organization with which the offeror worked under a particular contractual agreement.  If the offerors contractual agreement was with a government organization, a civil service employee who currently works for that organization must complete the questionnaire.  If the offerors contractual agreement was with a commercial business organization, an  employee who currently works for that commercial business organization and who is familiar with that organizations experience with the offeror must complete the Past Performance Questionnaire.  
Q96.  When will the ASDC Evolution Plan be posted?  Post asap, even if in draft form.

A96.  The Evolution Implementation Plan is not yet approved by NASA Headquarters and is not yet posted.  However, we will provide, by the time the final RFP is released, documentation that addresses the Plan.  This will be either the Plan itself, an approved draft, or a separate document that decribes the activity and its milestones.  

Q97.  Please put a list of attendees (company, people, phone number, and e-mail) on the web.

A97.  The attendee sign-in lists will be posted to the web.

Q98.  When ECS and Lits two systems are merging, most likely which system will be merged
into?

A98.  We believe the question is referring to the ECS and LaTIS systems.  See A34.

Q99.  Regarding the Chesapeake LightStation - is it the STARSS contractors responsibility to
subcontract the helicopter and/or boat for going to the CLS?

A99.  Yes, the STARSS Contractor will be responsible for their transportation to perform work at the Chesapeake Lighthouse.  See Draft RFP L.12.C.6.(d).

Q100.  What kind of media is used to distribute data to external users?

A100.  The kind of media available for customers to choose includes DLT 7000, Exabyte tapes, and CD/DVDs.  Most customers prefer using ftp and web download.

Q101.  Can an electronic copy of the presentation be made available?

A101.  Yes, all presentation material will be posted to the web.
Q102.  What are the obligations of off-site contractors IT Security and policy working with
LaRC such as direct connect data lines to LaRC and LaRC Government furnished equipment at
off-site facility?

A102.  Off-site contractors are connected inside the NASA LaRC firewall and are, effectively, electronically on-site in order to have access to the data storage and computational resources of the various programs.  The contractor is required to follow all IT Security policies at NASA and Langley Research Center.  Requirements for handling Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) are set forth in FAR 52.245-5, NFS 1852.245-73, and LaRC 52.245-90 in the Draft RFP.

Q103.  Must prime contractor eventually be CMMI certified or is it sufficient for a subcontractor on the team to be CMMI certified?

A103.  See A68.
Q104.  11/1/06 Phase in start, 12/1/06 full performance start - Start phase-in on 10/1/06, allow 60 days for phase-in.  Rationale:  More time to ensure phase-in successful while minimizing impact to ongoing tasks.  Avoids phase-in activities over Thanksgiving holiday, since many people, civil servants, and incumbent contractor staff, will be off during that time.  Reduces anxiety for incumbent staff.  To maintain 30 day phase-in provides unfair advantage to incumbent team (AS&M/SAIC).

A104.  This will remain unchanged in the final RFP. 
Q106.  Could you further explain SW development Class C, D, and E?  Also, could you provide
more specific examples of STARSS SW development activities that fall within these classses?


A106.  Refer to NPR 7150.2 for further details regarding software engineering.  See A80.  
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